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ASSEMBLYMAN WILLIAM "PAT" SalUBER (Chairman): I would 
like to call this hearing to order. Let me welcome everyone to 
this continuous public hearing before the Assembly Select 
Committee on the Division of Motor Vehicles. 

Today, we have invited, and wi 11 be hearing from, 
representatives of the Motor Vehicle Departments of the States 
of Pennsylvania and Virginia. The representatives of the State 
of New York were unable to be with us today. We will have to 
reschedule them. 

I will introduce the Committee member who is here with 
me. Obviously, everyone knows Assemblyman Miller from Passaic 
County, and we expect other members of the Committee to join us 
as the hearing progresses. 

We have invited to this hearing representatives of the 
Motor Vehicle Departments of the States of Pennsylvania and 
Virginia in order to elicit information from them on their 
systems of licensing, registration, and the regulation of motor 
vehicles used in their respective states. 

During the last several hearings, we have heard from 
the Attorney General, Motor Vehicle agents of the State of New 
Jersey, law enforcement officers, and others regarding the 
problems with New Jersey's system of Motor Vehicle registration 
and regulation, and the existing proposals for its reform 
during the next few years. The Committee now feels that all 
the information obtained should be put into some perspective 
and today, as a result, we will try to compare our system with 

those of two neighboring states. At this hearing the Committee 
would like to gather information on the successes 
experienced by other states, particularly our 
states, Pennsylvania, and sister state, Virginia. 

or failures 
neighboring 

The representatives we have with us today -- and we 
are very pleased to have them join us -- will begin a brief 
overview of their states' systems. The two representatives 
with us today are Jack Zogby, who is with the Department of 

l 



Transportation of the State of Pennsylvania, and Frank 

Sencindiver, who is Deputy Director of the Department of Motor 

Vehicles in the State of Virginia. At this time I am going to 

ask if Mr. Zogby would come to the front table here and make 

his presentation. Please introduce yourself to us, Mr. Zogby. 

J O H N J. Z O G B Y: Good morning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Good morning. Thank you for 

being with us. I understand you left very early from 

Harrisburg. 

MR. ZOGBY: I will be awake for about another hour. 

My name is Jack Zogby. I am Deputy Secretary of 

Transportation, in charge of the Motor Vehicle driver licensing 

activities. 

I am happy to have this opportunity to present some 

information to you. If you will bear with me -- although I did 

hand in this testimony -- I would like to read through a good 

part of it, to stress the points at least of how we are 

organized in Pennsv1vania, and perhaps some of the differences. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Anyone who got up as early as 

you did this morning has the right to read his statement. 

Please go right ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Or we'll read it for him, if the 

eyes are closed. 
MR. ZOGBY: As a neighbor, we are happy to help, if we 

can. I am presently serving in my eighth year as Deputy 

Secretary for Safety Administration in Pennsylvania. The 

Department is formally organized under five deputy secretaries. 

As Deputy Secretary for Safety Administration, I am 

responsible for the Bureau of Motor Vehicles, the Bureau of 

Driver Licensing, and the Center for Highway Safety. In that 

capacity, I am also the Governor's Highway Safety 

representative. The missions we have for safety administration 

are: To administer the driver and vehicle programs; to provide 

financial and information resources to support the State's 
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transportation network; and, to develop, coordinate, implement, 
and evaluate a comprehensive highway safety program. 

During the Administration of Governor Dick Thornburgh, 
and under the direction of Transportation Secretary Tom Larson, 
we have reorganized and revitalized the operations of the 
Safety Administration Bureaus. We have restructured the three 
bureaus along functional lines. Now, vehicle programs are 
carried out by one bureau, driver programs are the 
responsibility of a separate bureau, and safety efforts are the 
concern of the third bureau. The reason I emphasize that is 
that eight years ago that wasn't so. 

Our programs have concentrated on the challenges of 
what I ref er to as the three "p's -- product, process, and 
people. We have continually sought to design and provide the 
kinds of products that Pennsylvanians want and need. We have 
installed state-of-the-art data processing systems -- you will 
probably hear that often -- which deliver products in a timely 
fashion, of high quality, and within acceptable cost limits, 
and that is a very important ingredient in my presentation. 
And, perhaps more importantly, we have involved all of the 
members of the staff in these efforts in order to obtain the 
greatest benefit from their talents and ingenuity. 

I am proud to be able to look back over the last seven 
years in which services to Pennsylvanians have been 
significantly improved. Perhaps in the question part of this 
presentation I can give you some background on what had 
happened before. We have implemented programs: To stagger 
vehicle registrations this happened within my 
administration; to combine vehicle titling and sales tax 
collection processes, which were separate -- that is the sales 
tax on automobiles; to issue photo driver licenses -- we are 
into our fifth year; to make Pennsylvania the first 
northeastern member state of the International Registration 
Plan -- which is a registration system for commercial heavy 
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vehicles; to improve our motor carrier safety on-road 
inspection efforts; and, to substantially decrease application 
processing times. Our activities are continuing with major 
projects to redesign our vehicle, driver, and accident record 
data processing systems. 

All that we have accomplished has occurred during an 
overall downsizing of state government. The staff of Safety 
Administration has been reduced from approximately 1400 persons 
in January of 1979 to less than 1100 people today. By the end 
of this year, we will be down to 1055 staff members. 

To be able to improve services to our citizens at the 
same time that we are reduc.ing staff has been possible only 
through our continuing search for greater efficiencies in our 
operations. We have been aided in this effort through a 
department-wide strategic planning and budgeting process which 
has recognized the Safety Administration area as one of the 
Department's four primary business groups, and I will be happy 
to elaborate on that a little later. This business group 
concept has enabled us in the Driver and Vehicle Services 
Business Group to maintain a position of prominence and 
priority in the lively and healthy competition for fiscal and 
other resources. 

As I mentioned to you earlier in the presentation, we 
were organized under five deputies. That is the formal 
organization. Our informal organization is on the Strategic 
Planning Business Group concept. We really have three major 
product lines -- the transportation systems, the driver/vehicle 
services, and the grants mechanism that services transit 
agencies. The fourth business group is all the support 
agencies. 

Safety Administration collects almost $1 billion in 
fees and taxes every year. A significant portion of the funds 
which we collect are deposited in the Motor License Fund, the 
source of funding for all of the state's highway maintenance 
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and construction programs. My operations are also supported by 
the Motor License Fund. Our annual budget of-- I have a range 
here of $45 million to $50 million, only to show that $5 
million of my budget is federally augmented. Our budget is a 
result of an extensive internal hearing and review process 
which evaluates our needs in relation to the highway programs. 
I am referring again to the strategic planning and budgeting 
process. I make a formal presentation to 
Transportation, who then incorporates that 
presentation to the Governor. 

the Secretary of 
into his budget 

Because one of our primary missions is to collect 
funds to support the state's highway programs, we have 
continually sought to maintain a revenue/cost ratio of at least 
20 to 1. In fact, currently it is 21 to 1. That is a major 
emphasis because I think 
that I understand you 
Pennsylvania, why in the 

that will answer one of the questions 
have; you know, in the case of 

Transportation Department and how does 
it operate that way? 
as much money with 
maintain our highways. 

Obviously, my mission now is to collect 
the least possible expense so we can 

As a result, we have had to maintain a sharp focus on 
our priori ties and put aside "luxury" program proposals which 
are not in line with our primary missions. 

I have provided you with this information not in an 
attempt to impress you with our accomplishments -- because I 
know you are not easily impressed -- but so that you are able 
to better understand the context in which this Safety 
Administration operates. As you know, state governments 
differ. These differences are rooted in the historical 
developments of the states and in the structures which have 
evolved over the years as a result of administrative and 
legislative actions. The ways that we handle vehicle and 
driver applications in Pennsylvania now, and propose to handle 
them in the future, are not the same as New Jersey. What works 
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in Pennsylvania may not be a suitable answer to your Motor 
Vehicle program areas here. 

But, to give you an idea of how we operate, 
Pennsylvania is a centralized system. Basically, we are a mail 
order system. We operate no branch offices. Now, those of you 
who are close to the Philadelphia area will challenge me on 
that, but I will explain that, too. We did once have a branch 
office in Philadelphia. We closed it. All applications for 
driver license and vehicle registration renewals are processed 
in Harrisburg. Learner permits and vehicle title applications 
are also handled through our centralized operations. 

I believe we are the only state in the country which 
operates to a centralized system. That tells you something. 
It also tells you of the need to have locally distributed 
services. 

We have chosen this approach because it offers us the 
greatest efficiencies in, and control of these processes -- and 
it does, no doubt about it. When we considered contracting out 
our renewal processing to a bank with commercial lockbox 
capabilities, we discovered that no bank would bid on the work 
because they could not compete with the low costs of our 
renewal payment processing operations. They just wouldn't 
touch it. They couldn't beat our price. 

And, not only is our operation efficient, but we have 
also been able to keep it productive. The days when 
Pennsylvania's Bureau of Motor Vehicles was backlogged for 
weeks with renewal applications are long gone, and I'm talking 
about weeks; in some cases, months. We now complete all 
processing of these applications within two days, which 
includes the deposit of all checks, and the delivery of the 
finished products to the post office. And, in our continuing 
efforts to apply "business" principles to our operations, we 
have used a mai 1 pre-sort contractor to enable us to save on 
postage costs. Again, we are a mail order business, and this 
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is not an insignificant cost. My budget for postage is about 
$5 million a year. But my savings in this pre-sort, on 
first-class mail, is-- My cost is under 19 cents, which would 
be a 22-cent item . 

While it is accurate to say that our operations are 
centralized in Harrisburg, it is also somewhat misleading. We 
do not have any branch offices, but there are facilities 
available throughout the Commonwealth where Pennsylvanians can 
and, in some cases, must go for application processing. The 
Pennsylvania State Police, for one, operate 80 driver 
examination centers where temporary licenses are given to new 
drivers and to new residents who previously held valid licenses 
from other states. This is their first contact. 

Our safety inspection and emission inspection programs 
are carried out by more than 18,000 private stations. 

We also have 115 photo license centers located 
throughout the Commonwealth, operated by a contractor, at which 
drivers are photographed and final licenses are instantly 
issued. They do not do any of the processing; all they do is 
give out the licenses. That contract, by the way, is to an 
industry called Pennsylvania Industries for Blind and 
Handicapped. It is an umbrella organization that represents 
all of the blind and handicapped workshops throughout the 
state. They contract for, and operate, these facilities with 
handicapped people. The law states they must employ at least 
75% handicapped people. They can get technical expertise in 
other areas. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: What is the law in 
Pennsylvania? Does everyone have to have a photo license? 

MR. ZOGBY: Everyone has to have a photo license. If 
you have any questions there, I can elaborate on that 
contract. It has worked well for us. 

These offices are complemented by an extensive network 
of private agents who assist persons in completing vehicle and 
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driver applications. There are four types of agents -- card 

agents, full agents, dealers, and messenger services. I think 

I ought t_o elaborate on this. so you can understand what kind of 

- a mechanism this is. This is something that has evolved over 

the years when people just used to run applications in. That 

is, in fact, what they do. 

Card agents are notaries. They handle our 

applications, several of which require notarization. That is 

how they got into the business. There are more than 60, ooo 
notary publics in Pennsylvania. We estimate that approximately 

30,000 of them handle our applications at least occasionally. 

They are referred :to as card agents because they are authorized 

to handle title and registration transfer applications and to 

issue temporary registration cards to the new vehicle owners. 

These duties include the collection and transmittal of all fees 

and taxes due to the Department. The only requirement placed 

on these agents is that they are notaries. No special bond or 

registration with us is required. 

Full agents do everything which card agents do -- do 

everything the notaries do -- plus they are authorized to issue 

a metal temporary registration plate to the title and 

registration applicant. We do not have cardboard temporary 

plates in Pennsylvania. The only time we issue a cardboard 
plate is when the vehicle is going to be registered in another 
state; that is, they bought it in Pennsylvania and it is going 

to leave Pennsylvania. If it is going to stay in Pennsylvania, 

we give it a metal plate. That temporary metal plate becomes a 
permanent plate just by putting on a validated sticker. 

Theref_ore, while card agents can only transfer 

existing registrations, full agents are also able to issue new 

registrations. The full agents must post a $10,000 per office 

bond with our Department in order to obtain authorization. 

There are approximately 1400 full agents in the Commonwealth. 
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The third level are dealers. Dealers want to process 
the temporary registration cards and plates, obviously, so the 
person can drive out of that showroom with the car plated and 
with his temporary registration. Most new and used car dealers 
who are in this business -- over 6000 -- are authorized to 
issue temporary plates. 

The highest level of agent in Pennsylvania is called 
the messenger service, and this is embodied in the statute, by 
the way. Almost all messenger services are also full agents. 
In addition to issuing temporary registration cards and plates, 
a messenger is authorized to personally deliver vehicle and 
driver applications to the· Department's offices in Harrisburg. 
They are primarily runners. They collect the registration 
forms and money from the motorists and run them into 
Harrisburg. We will process them, give them back to them, and 
they will deliver them to the motorists, the same day. Most of 
our messenger services are out of the Philadelphia area, not 
surprisingly. 

When the work is completed, the products -- except 
titles; titles are mailed directly to the motorists -- are then 
given to the messenger to return to the motorists. 

The criteria requirements to become a messenger 
service are embodied in law. Those applying for messenger 
services are reviewed by the Department's Inspector General's 
office to ensure that they qualify; that is, both for moral 
integrity and financial requirements. They must post a $50,000 
bond. There are 145 messengers who are allowed to do business 
in the Commonwealth. Many card agents, full agents, and 
dealers submit title applications to us through messengers. 
One messenger service, by the way, is the Pennsylvania AAA. 
They have 88 off ices throughout the Commonweal th. It is an 
organization most motorists are used to dealing with. 

In fact, over half of the title applications which we 
receive are brought to us by messengers. I can elaborate on 
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that later. That was one activity that-- At the time I took 
over, most of the people in my office thought they were some 
sort of a bandit operation. When I realized that they handled 
half of our title applications, I figured, "Well, I better do 
business with these people." As an additional service, 
messengers are permitted to issue certain classes of temporary 
learners' permits after checking with the Department. 

All four of these types of agents collect and transmit 
to us the fees due the Commonweal th. The fees which they 
charge for their services are in addition to those charged by 
the Department. There are no limits placed on the fees which 
they charge, except for a $10 maximum set by the Legislature on 
the issuance of a temporary registration plate. They can 
charge no more than that. Al 1 of the others are marketplace 
driven. 

Pennsylvania citizens use the services of these agents 
for a variety of reasons. In some cases, they are asking the 
agent to assist them with what appears to be a complex process 
for obtaining vehicle and/or driver credentials. With 
estimates of functional illiteracy in the general population 
running as high as 25%, this is not surprising. We in the 
public sector, especially in motor vehicle and driver 
licensings, think we design easy forms. Well, no matter how 
easy we think we designed them, there is still going to be 25% 

of the population who just don't understand them. Other people 
are quite capable of handling the application, but have waited 
until the last minute to submit it and now want fast service. 
So, they will go to a tag agent today and they will hope that 
person will bring their registrations back that night, because 
they haven't got the time to run to Harrisburg. 

The agents have provided a very valuable service to 
both the Department and the citizens of the Commonwealth, and I 
recognize that. They have served as a local source of 
assistance through which applications are channeled to our 
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Harrisburg offices. One of the things I did with these 

messenger services, by the way, was, I got them to do some 

pre-preparation work, so I can expedite the process myself in 

Harrisburg. And they were happy to do it because, obviously, 

fast service is one of their selling points. 

However, in 1984, members of my management staff and I 

decided that we needed to explore ways in which we could more 

effectively decentralize our vehicle and driver services. 

While I am very happy with the centralized approach, and while 

I understand its cost-effectiveness, there is a service out 

there that could be administered to the Commonwealth citizens. 

Especially in Pennsylvania, I think you can appreciate the 

difference in size. In the rural areas of Pennsylvania, you 

have-- Erie is about a five and a half mile drive from 

Harrisburg. Our current agents are only now capable of 

handling temporary credentials. All processing must occur in 

Harrisburg. That is the way we are organized. We wanted to 

consider ways in wpi~h the processing could be moved into local 

communities. 

So, we hired a consultant to conduct a feasibility 

study of the decentralization alternatives. One of those 

alternatives, by the way, was, should we have branch offices? 

Our needs included the requirement for the Commonwealth to 

provide vehicle and licensing services to the public in a 

manner which would accommodate a wide degree of intellectual 

abilities, convenience 

direct issuance of a 

in terms of local service capacities, 

finished product, single stop full 

service, and on-the-spot problem resolution. We also wanted to 

be certain that, if we decided to proceed with 

decentralization, we would not preclude the current agents from 

continuing to carry out their present businesses. 

The consultant's final report contained seven 

alternatives. The alternative we chose was to support a 

private-sector-operated agent system. Contracts will be 
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executed with businesses after a careful review of the owners' 
backgrounds and financial dependability. These decentralized 
service offices will be able to create and change records in 
our vehicle and driver automated files, to collect the fees due 
to the Commonwealth, and to issue regular registrations and 
driver credentials. They will be required to locally deposit 
our funds in a state account, in sort of a lock box operation. 

We will permit the decentralized service system to be 
market driven. We will neither dictate where offices must be 
opened or protect market areas where off ices already exist. 
The owners will charge fees for their services. These fees 
will also be set by the marketplace, not by the state. We 
believe that this will foster a very healthy competitive and 
service-oriented approach in these offices. The reason I say 
that is because what exists now is that kind of a system, and 
it is market driven. While this goes on, we will maintain our 
mail order system, which then makes it highly competitive. So, 
the Pennsylvania motorist has the opportunity to go to a 
decentralized site, that may be down the street. He will have 
to pay a fee for that; however, for 22 cents, he can drop it in 
the mail and get the same credentials. 

Equally important, the opportunity to participate in 
this program will be open to everyone who can meet our contract 
criteria and be bonded. The selection process will be embodied 
in statute and on the investigation of our Inspector General's 
office. 

We chose this approach because it is based on 
private-sector participation. We recognize the excellent 
service which our current agents have provided to 
Pennsylvanians, and we are confident that we can build on this 
foundation in the decentralization program. In addition -- and 
this is really the persuasive part of this alternative -- we 
estimate that the Commonwealth will be able to save more than 
$9 million in the first five years of the program through staff 
reductions and other savings in the Harrisburg office. 
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To proceed with this ambitious program requires a data 
processing system which will ensure that we can maintain proper 
management and fiscal controls when we pass processing 
capability to a contractor-operated office. 

Maybe I should pause at this point. I know you have 
probably heard about data processing systems ad nauseam. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: That is only part of it. That 
is kind of an understatement on our part, but that is all 
right. (laughter) 

MR. ZOGBY: I work in the Transportation Department. 
My career path has been through Transportation. I have been 
based,- and raised in the concept of, you know, maintaining and 
protecting that infrastructure, and I think you have heard of 
that recently many times. 

Well, what I discovered after becoming a Motor Vehicle 
administrator, is that the data processing systems are our 
infrastructure. As they malfunction, or as they collapse, you 
are in big trouble, as you know. So, we spend a lot of time-­
You will always hear, I think, from anyone who comes here from 
a motor vehicle perspective, how important data processing 
systems are, but they must be maintained. 

ASSEMBL':L"'l"JAN SCHUBER: I don't think there is any 
question in our minds that that is true, and that is part of 
the problem we are having at the present time with so-called 
state-of-the-art data processing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Our trouble is, we never got the 
chance to maintain them. 

MR. ZOGBY: In any event, my two bureaus which are 
most directly involved -- Motor Vehicles and Driver Licensing 
-- are currently working on redesigns of those systems. The 
redesigns are buying me some efficiencies. Remember, I 
mentioned to you that I am going down to 1055. Well, I 
couldn't do that unless I redesigned those systems. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Are you redesigning those 
yourselves, or are you hiring people to do that? 
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MR. ZOGBY: We have a contractor on board. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Merrill Lynch? 
MR. ZOGBY: Arthur Andersen. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Arthur Andersen? 
MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Have you ever heard of Price 

Waterhouse? (laughter) 
MR. ZOGBY: I could even elaborate on that a little 

later. Our current projection is that we will begin phasing in 
the decentralized system in 1988, with its full implementation 
by 1991. It requires, also, a telecommunication system so you 
can have the fiscal and the security of your information. When 
we are handling driver records especially, we have to be 
concerned about the integrity of the system. 

I will conclude my remarks by noting that while we 
have come a long way in the past seven years in Pennsylvania, 
we are far from finished -- as I guess anybody's work is. New 
challenges remain to be addressed; they emerge daily. One in 
particular is the kind of service we provide to our General 
Assembly. If you want me to, I can even elaborate on that. 

I understand that your review here of the Motor 
Vehicle agency includes some fundamental questions about its 
operations. I can only say that in Pennsylvania, if, in fact, 
we can provide an example for your help-- I would say that a 
solid management team, which is given both administrative and 
legislative support -- and I say both -- can do it. They can 
succeed. It takes time and hard work, but the service and 
performance objectives are achievable. That is the happy news 
anyway. 

Thank 
presep.tation. 
answer them. 

you for bearing with my reading of my 
If you have any questions, I will be glad to 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Jack, thank you very much for 
coming down here so early to be with us this morning. I know 
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we have questions for you, but first I would like to introduce 
other Committee members who have joined us: Assemblyman Bob 
Martin from Morris County, Assemblyman Tom Shusted from Camden, 
and Assemblyman Tom Foy from Burlington County. 

Jack, let me ask you this, if I might: If I were to 
move to Pennsylvania and had to register my vehicle there, what 
would I have to do as a result of it, taking into account all 
that you have testified to today? What would be my first step? 

MR. ZOGBY: Well, you could handle it several ways. 
One way-- For instance, if you moved into the City of 
Philadelphia, you could go to one of those messenger services I 
,mentioned, like the 'AJ,,.A office. They will have the forms on 
hand. You would fill out the forms--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: --and you would attach the registration 

information. In this case, in registering your car in 
Pennsylvania, you would have to have something on the order of 
a title. Either you would have the title, or it could be 
encumbered, and we would have to get some information on that. 
That would be sent to Harrisburg. We would process that, and 
send it right back to you at your mailing address. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: At the mailing address. I am 
not familiar with this. What is your waiting time at these 
decentralized offices -- the agents' offices? 

MR. ZOGBY: Okay. See, at least as I understand it, 
and see it -- I visit these people -- the beauty of it is that 
there is no waiting time. See, it is not the kind of operation 
where you have -- in your case, what, 55 offices? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: And everybody must go to that office. 

These private-sector people have office hours driven by the 
market again. Many of them are open Saturdays; many of them 
are open nights. As people come into their offices, they may 
have one to several clerks, depending, again, on the volume. 
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Some messenger services-- Take an AAA office, the Keystone 
Automobile Club in Philadelphia, which is an AAA affiliate, if 
you walk into their office, they have a long counter of people 
who handle just motor vehicle applications. So, if you walk in 
there, the waiting period, you know,_ may be-- At times, it may 
be as bad as maybe-- Well, I wouldn't even say a bank, because 
a bank at noontime backs up. I have never seen any of their 
offices backed up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Do they charge a fee for their 
service? 

MR. ZOGBY: The AAA people do not charge members. 
They charge a processing fee to non-members. Now, the other 
tax services, however, do charge a fee. That fee, again, is by 
market. There may be an office in Philadelphia -- one service 
I know of-- They will charge for the processing of a simple 
renewal -- they will charge perhaps $5. They do that because 
down the street the guy will do it for $4. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: It is not regulated at all? 
MR. ZOGBY: It is not regulated. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Through you, Mr. Chairman, do 

you have any problem with price fixing, as far as fees? 
MR. ZOGBY: Well, we have just had an investigation of 

that in the Philadelphia area, by the way, because that is 
where most of these people are. We found -- it is not as pure 
as I am making it sound -- some problems with some of the 
messenger services. But, price fixing, no, I would say they 
are about as cutthroat as any operation I have seen. What they 
have done, in some cases, when a person is in real need, is 
gouge them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: What is your waiting time now 
for my registration to come back in the mail after I have gone 
to one of these AAA offices? 

at. I 

MR. ZOGBY: My measure-­
have asked AAA-- They 
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Pennsylvania, by the way; they are also an unique setup. All 
the branch offices in Pennsylvania are covered by a federation 
office in Harrisburg, so they provide messenger service handily 
for them. 

In my office, I measure it from the time it comes in 
until the time I put it out the door. And in my office, 
renewals -- just a simple renewal application -- is less than 
two days. I have done many in one day. Now, the measure they 
give me from the AAA, is three to four days. They say it is 
about three to four days by their measurement. That would take 
some of their handling time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Do you have inspectors in the 
field who go out to check these offices, these private agents? 

MR. ZOGBY: No. In our Department, we have an 
Inspector General. If I suspect, or if anyone writes in 
complaining about this activity, he will go out on complaint. 
I also do that with the State Police. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: How many drivers are there in 
the State of Pennsylvania? 

MR. ZOGBY: We have we feel fairly comfortable now 
in this record; it was a little inflated before -- about seven 
and a half million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Seven and a half million? 
MR. ZOGBY: Yes, and about -- almost the same number 

of vehicles. 
ASSEMBLYMAN 

interesting concept 
licenses--

SCHUBER: Let 
you mentioned 

me ask you 
before about 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah? 
ASSEMBLYMAN 

separate offices, or 
agents' offices? 

SCHUBER: 
are they 

--are 
combined 

the photo 
into some 

about the 
the photo 

licenses· 

of these 

MR. ZOGBY: No. The agents are not in that business. 
When we went into the photo license business, back in '81--
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You know, the photograph and the equipment to photograph for 
licenses is a contracted activity across the country. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: There are only two viable contractors 

Polaroid and a company called National Business Systems. We 
had put it out for bid, and National Business Systems won. At 
the same time, we also put out for bid the operation. Now, 
what has happened, as part of an exclusive provision in our 
Administrative Code, the Pennsylvania Industries for the Blind 
and Handicapped claimed exclusive rights for it, and they got 
it. I mean, they have businesses in the state, like providing 
brooms and things like that, some janitorial services. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: They asked for this one, and they got it. 

I was a little concerned about how it was going to operate, but 
after-- Well, we are into our second contract with the 
equipment, and with the Pennsylvania Industries for the Blind 
and Handicapped, and it has not risen in price. The cost to 
Pennsylvanians, per license, is 37 and a half cents a year, and 
we have controlled it. The reason is because these people are 
employed on a part-time basis. You may see pluses or minuses 
for this, but they can control their costs because they pay 
these people somewhere in the neighborhood of $4. 50 an hour. 
The fringes are not there because the people work four hours on 
swing shifts a day. They are people who are happy to be 
employed, so there is a benefit both ways . We benefit by 
holding the costs; they benefit by having productive employment 
and money in their pockets. And, the agencies or the 
workshops are happy because they see this as a very 
productive type of activity for their clients, rather than, you 
know, just busy work. 

So, to our benefit, it has worked extremely well. The 
control of it was a problem at first, but we have a performance 
provision in the contract with them. They bend over backwards 
to prove that they can do it, and they are doing it. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: What kind of a performance 
provision? 

MR. ZOGBY: We have performance provisions. For 
instance, if they-- Well, if they take too many pictures to 
successfully complete one license, they have to eat that cost. 
They can't pass it on to us. If, in fact, they pass through a 
document-- See, the central processing part is the camera 
part, which you may be familiar with. We process that through 
Harrisburg; we send it to the motorist. That motorist takes 
the camera card to the photo location. The operators at that 
location insert that camera card into the camera and take the 
picture, where you get the data and the picture simultaneously 
on your license. If, in fact, the information on that camera 
card has been altered, and it is an obvious alteration, we fine 
the Pennsylvania Industries for the Blind and Handicapped $75 
per camera card. 

What they did because we were enforcing it --
initiallv when they started getting hit with these hills for 
$75 each-- They put out a reward to their employees of $25 for 
everyone they successfully got. That cleared up their problem 
almost immediately. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: How many of these off ices are 
there? I know that was in your presentation. 

MR. ZOGBY: There are 115. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: One hundred and fifteen. 
MR. ZOGBY: Some of them are part-time. They will 

operate out of a satellite area. For instance, in very rural, 
remote areas, they may only be open, say, on a Wednesday. In 
the urban areas, they are open Saturdays, too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Forgive my ignorance on some of 
the Pennsylvania procedures, because I live in the northeastern 
part of the State. But, how long has Pennsylvania had photo 
licenses? 

MR. ZOGBY: Since '81. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Since 1981? 
MR. ZOGBY: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: The agents you spoke about 

before -- the different grades of agent--
MR. ZOGBY: Yes? 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You say some of them are 

regulated by statute which requires certain provisions. Are 
those put out to bid at all? 

MR. ZOGBY: No, no bid. Anyone who can meet the 
criteria can open up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And the criteria is what? 
MR. ZOGBY: Primarily the bonding, which is probably 

the most expensive part. We have some provisions in the 
statute and regulation with regard to the office and how it is 
identified. There are some general provisions about moral 
integrity, and if they have any kind of misdemeanor, or things 
like that, that excludes them. The bonding, I guess, is the 
biggest one. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Who makes the appointment? 
MR. ZOGBY: I' 11 tell you, it is really a process 

thing. If they meet all of the criteria, there is no way I can 
reject them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: But, I mean, who has the final 
say on the appointment? 

MR. ZOGBY: I do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You do, okay. 
MR. ZOGBY: But, basically, if they meet everything, 

it's routine. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And if they meet the 

requirements, what do you do, enter into a contract with them? 
MR. ZOGBY: Well, it's not even a contract, no. It is 

just that they apply--
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: We then give them the certification. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 

MR. ZOGBY: See, the thing they need, especially those 

who handle plates, is an inventory. We won't sell them to 

anybody who is not certified to do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. You don't enter into a 

contract with them. They are appointed. Is that at will? 

MR. ZOGBY: We can cancel it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: At any time? 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. Well, it has to be for a criteria 

violation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: For a violation of the criteria. 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. We hold an administrative hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Through you, Mr. Chairman, just 

to follow up. If the Chairman moves over to the Philadelphia 

area, if he needs a registration he goes into the AAA office, 

let's say. 

MR. ZOGBY: Well, that is one avenue. He can also 

write to us directly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: '!'hen, to get a driver's license, 

he has to look for one of these other operations--

MR. ZOGBY: That's right, yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: --which are open, and find the 

proper time. He can't combine those into one facility? 

MR. ZOGBY: Well, he can, but eventually-- He can go 

to the same agent, for instance, and get information about 

driver licensing, but he is even~ually going to have to go to a 

State Police facility -- a driver exam facility -- because the 

provision we have in Pennsylvania, whether you are a new 

licensee or an out-of-state licensee, is that we accept your 

valid license. We are a one-license state. You must surrender 

your New Jersey license before you can get a Pennsylvania 

license. We also give you a brief rules-of-the-road test to 

assure that you are at least knowledgeable on the rules of 

Pennsylvania. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: That is a separate office, then, 
from these offices that just provide the photo licenses. You 
are talking about three different stops along the route: one 
for registration, one to get the requirements to obtain a 
driver's license, and third, you have to go to a facility that 
provides photo licenses. 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Any further stops in order to 

register? 
MR. ZOGBY: There could be, but I'll tell you-­
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You have all the necessary 

paperwork, insurance or otherwise, that you would need, so if 
you were stopped you wouldn't be in violation of some--

MR. ZOGBY: Insurance is verified by my office, so you 
wouldn't need that stuff. That would be part of the 
application process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: How about a driver test? 
MR. ZOGBY: If you are a new 1 icenc:ee, the tests are 

given at that same facility -- the driver exam center that 
handles the licensing process. So that, at least, is the same. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That is done through your Division 
of State Police? 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. They are a department in 
Pennsylvania. However, over time, they have become our agents 
in the driver exam process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me ask a couple of questions, if 
I may, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Go ahead, Tom. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: First, I note that your consultant's 

report contains seven alternatives, of which you made the 
selection to go toward a private-sector operating agent 
system. Would it be possible for us to get a copy of your 

report? 
MR. ZOGBY: Absolutely. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I think it would be very useful-­
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: For the Committee. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: --for 

because we could look at the 
addressed in Pennsylvania and see 
Jersey's particular problems. 

the Committee to have that, 
kinds of issues that were 
how they might relate to New 

One of the questions I have is, in your existing 
private operation -- the messenger services and others -- do 
you have any people, for example, like Pep Boys or Penn Jersey 
auto stores, or people 1 ike that, who are engaged in those 
services? 

MR. ZOGBY: The only way outfits like that are engaged 
is through the vehicle inspection program. 
of facilities are also certified by us 
inspection stations. 

Some of those types 
to be the official 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: They don't serve as messenger 
services or other types of agents? 

MR. ZOGBY: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: It would seem to me that it would be 

like a pharmacy, you know, if at the back of your store you had 
all the state programs. People could come in, walk through, 
pick up some simonize, pick up something else. With your new 
system, have you taken applications yet from private-sector 
people? 

MR. ZOGBY: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That hasn't started? 
MR. ZOGBY: That has not started. In fact, as I 

mentioned, until we have our data processing systems finally 
redesigned, I won't even consider that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right. Basically, it is based upon 
what their financial capability is, the ability to get a bond 
and demonstrate some financial viability, and then, I assume, 
you do some sort of a criminal background check on them. 
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MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. Now, on this new system, it is 
going to be more than just the bonding and the other criteria, 
because what they are going to have to do is come up with some 
capitalization money, too. To be able to tie into the system, 
they are going to have to have, at minimum, a PC -- that is, a 
personalized computer. They may even have to have a 
mini-computer, depending on the size of the office. They will 
then have to tie it into our communication system. Now, all 
that capitalization cost is going to be theirs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do you require any kind of minimum 
design standards in terms of the type of facility they are 
supposed to have -- it ought to have a desk, the place ought to 
be clean, you know, commodious to the public, and that kind of 
stuff? Is that all regulated by you? 

MR. ZOGBY: That is all by regulation, yes, and, in 
fact, we do close them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do you also administer the 
inspection system for your state? 

MR. ZOGBY: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The Motor Vehicle inspection system? 
MR. ZOGBY: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: We have a dual system here in New 

Jersey, which we have just extended. 
MR. ZOGBY: I know. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Have you had problems with Motor 

Vehicle state station owners, you know, gas station owners, as 
far as either price gouging or unnecessary repairs, or things 
like that? 

MR. ZOGBY: We have run the whole gamut. A couple of 
things. First of all, we had trouble with the Emission Program 
because we went private garage rather than franchise, at least 
in their minds. The General Assembly did set very specific 
1 imi ts on the costs and some other things they can do in the 
Emission Program. They complained that they couldn't do it. 
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It is a voluntary program, but still they felt compelled to 

stay in with it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You are all private; you don't have 
state stations. 

are 

MR. ZOGBY: 

just state 

I don't have any state stations, no. They 

controlled. So, the service station 

associations, in fact, have a large campaign against the 

Emission Program. I wasn't too crazy about it myself, but we 

had to have it, so we put one in. It is operating now two 

years and, while they are not extremely happy with it, it is 

operating. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Are you in compliance with Federal 

EPA emission requirements? 

MR. ZOGBY: Well, as far as the operation of the 

system is concerned, Philadelphia is not in compliance with the 

air ambient guali ty levels, so we have to maintain the system 

there. Probably always will, according to their projections. 

Now, on the private garage side, I am constantly 

involved in hearings with private-sector garages because we 

close a good many of them for violation of the rules, whether 

it is unreasonable costs, or whether they do a faulty 

inspection. I mean, one of the problems we have is what they 

call the "Lick and stick operations," that is, they don't 

actually do an inspection; they just give them a sticker. It 

has been alleged that on the streets of Philadelphia, you can 

get a sticker at any time in the private sector. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Or anything else, for that matter. 

(laughter) 

MR. ZOGBY: In any event, we are continually involved 

in those kinds of confrontations with members of the industry. 

I guess the major ones come when we actually tell a dealer we 

are going to have to close his inspection station. Now, the 

new car dealers, especially large ones--
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do you anticipate in the paperwork 
operations any of the major oil companies getting involved so 
that their service stations would be providers of these various 
services? I mean, right now you can go into an AM/PM and get a 
quart of milk at a gas station. 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I wonder if it will soon be to the 

point where we can get our license renewed and things like that. 
MR. ZOGBY~ I' 11 tell you, again, under the 

private-sector type, market-driven service orientation, I, 
myself, can find nothing wrong with that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: If, in fact, they meet all of the criteria 

and they are that enterprising, why not? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. 

Pennsylvania resident to do this? I 
Do you have to be a 

might set up a little 
corporation. You know, I have a home in Bucks County, and I 
might run a little operation out of there. 

MR. ZOGBY: Well, you could. Yeah, you could. I 
think the only area where you are required to have Pennsylvania 
residency is in the inspection program, because you must have a 
Pennsylvania license. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. 
MR. ZOGBY: A Pennsylvania driver's license, and you 

have to be a resident to do that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: His name is F-O-Y. Look for him. 
MR. ZOGBY: I wonder if he is going to beat me to the 

business. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: When you spoke about this 

messenger service, for the fee they charge you, are they 
providing any real service other than just-- You talked about 
them. You said that people come in and they have a form there, 
which they fill out, and then the service company sends it to 
Harrisburg. What I don't understand is, why can't a person 
fill out the form and send it from their home? 
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MR. ZOGBY: They can. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: What information, or what service 

are these people actually providing at these facilities? 
MR. ZOGBY: Okay. I think one thing we have to 

establish is our definition of service. There are many people 
who go to -- what is the tax -- H & R Block-- They go to H & R 
Block to fill out a 1040A. I have to assume he is providing a 
service to a certain segment of people. The tax services do 
the same thing. As I mentioned earlier in my testimony, 25% of 
our population that is not only Pennsylvania; that is 
nationwide -- are functionally illiterate. They cannot fill 
out our forms. They feel more secure in going to these offices 
to make sure the form is filled out correctly. 

There is another segment of the population that 
waits until the last minute. That is sort of the battle 
Motor Vehicle administrators. In any event, this 
services those people. 

always 
cry of 

group 

I' 11 tell you another area that I haven't discussed 
here. The General Assembly district office is almost virtually 
a messenger service. It is not established as one. The 
citizens in that area go to their General Assembly member and 
say, "Hey, how about getting this"--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: What a nightmare that would be. 
MR. ZOGBY: Well, to some it is a nightmare; to 

others, it gets them reelected. But, it is a service. It is a 
service where the motorist feels comfortable in going to 
someone he or she can eyeball, rather than putting a 22-cent 
stamp on it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: If they need to get the form, 
though, to send to Harrisburg-­

MR. ZOGBY: Well, see, 
First of al 1, if you are in our 
you the application in the mail. 

there are a couple of ways. 

system to begin with, we send 
It is also a prompter to tell 

ou it is time to renew. Now, if you are not, then you have to 
PROPERTY OF 
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so somewhere to get it. You can go to the State Police; you 
can go to some other types of state offices; you can go to 
these messenger services. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: And, if you go to a legislative 
office, or if you go to the State Police, we will assume that 
there is no fee charged. 

MR. ZOGBY: There is no fee charged. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: But, if you go to a private 

person, then they are entitled to charge whatever they wish to. 
MR. ZOGBY: Whatever the traffic will bear. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me learn a little bit about this 

legislative office operation. That is a very dangerous idea, 
potentially. In Pennsylvania, the legislators are part-time, 
is that correct? 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: But, do they have a full-time staff? 
MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. 
~~qEMBLYMJ..N FOY: Okay, so they have a full-time staff 

which mans the office. 
MR. ZOGBY: We have 253 General Assembly members; that 

is, 203 House and 50 Senators. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. And, do most of those provide 

these services through their offices? 
MR. ZOGBY: I don't think they would dare send it 

away. Now, some encourage it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. For example, in New Jersey, 

we are able to make people notaries, in a sense. They ask us 
for notary applications. We sign off on them and send them 
in. So, in a sense, it is similar to that, only it may be a 
more frequent occurrence. But, they actually have an office 
that is paid for by the state and staffed by full-time people. 

MR. ZOGBY: They have home offices that they have 
part-time people staffing. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: May I ask a question? 

Assemblyman Foy ref erred to Pep Boys, and places like that. 

How would you license them, through the manager, or would they 

be licensed--

MR. ZOGBY: Okay. The way we do it right now-- The 

only avenue I have to compare it with is the inspection 

station. We license it to the company, and the manager in 

charge is the person by which we identify it -- either the 

manager in charge or, if it is a smaller station, a private-­

Our sanctioning system relates to who is responsible and how we 

operate the sanction. If a mechanic in the larger stores, 

1 ike, for instance, a Sears, or a K Mart, or something 1 ike 

that-- If the manager is involved in an inspection that is 

considered faulty or improper, we will close down the station. 

If it is a mechanic who did something, and they could show that 

the manager had no knowledge of it, or didn't condone that 

activity, then we sanction the mechanic. We take away his 

certification. So, we have to know who the manager is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Assemblyman Miller? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: What would the cost be for a 

driver's license as far as the state fee is concerned in 

Pennsylvania? 

MR. ZOGBY: The state fee is $20 for a four-year 

license, plus $1.50 we tacked on because of the photo. So, it 

is $21.50 for four years. Now, one of the things you have to 

recognize is that that is not what it costs us. It is a 

revenue generator. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I understand that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Then, of course, the fee of the-­

MR. ZOGBY: The tax service is on top of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That is on top of that. 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: 

whatever the market--

That floats, depending upon 
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MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. Again, at 'AAA, especially for 
members, I don't think they charge at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: That would probably fit in with 
their procedures -- throughout the country, I think. 

MR. ZOGBY: That's right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: And all the revenue the 

Department pulls in is dedicated to transportation? 
MR. ZOGBY: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Motor Vehicle operations? 
MR. ZOGBY: · No. See, I am in Transportation, and I 

collect both the motor vehicle fees and the sales tax on 
automobiles. The sales tax goes into the general fund. The 
motor vehicle fees go into the Motor License Fund. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I see, and that takes care of 
your roads -- your infrastructure -- the DOT for Pennsylvania. 

MR. ZOGBY: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Also the operation of the 

Department of Motor Vehicle? 

dollars? 

right? 

MR. ZOGBY: And our operation. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: What does that amount to in 

MR. ZOGBY: Our state budget last year was $45 million. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Forty-five million. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: That is 7.5 million drivers, 

MR. ZOGBY: Seven and a half million drivers. That 
$45 million also funds, aside from the process -- you know, 
Driver Licensing and Motor Vehicles it funds my Safety 
Program people, and some engineers in our field offices who do 
safety work. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: You're saying $45 million to run 
your department in your budget? What is the gross you take in 
that the state gets, as far as your DOT is concerned? 
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MR. ZOGBY: I take in a billion dollars. It is almost 
split in half. Half is the General Fund and half is the Motor 
License Fund. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I see. Interesting. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: May I--
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I just want to ask one other 

question. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Oh, I'm sorry. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Your computers are going so 

well. Do you rent time? (laughter) 
MR. ZOGBY: No, we don't, 

. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: 

little bit on this side. 
I thought maybe we could use a 

MR. ZOGBY: Well, that's not true. Of course, we have 
some very large pieces of hardware, if that is of any--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: How long have you been 
computerized? 

MR. ZOGBY: Pardon me? 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: 

computerized? 
How long have you been 

MR. ZOGBY: We have been computerized since 1971. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Since '71? 
MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. But -- and these are some of the 

problems I think have happened to us all -- we had what they 
called an Addressograph System in Pennsylvania -- as many 
states do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: I think Frank Sencindiver will tell you 

the same thing. That is when they used to have metal plates 
with everybody's name and address on them. We took that system 
-- that process -- and automated it, and never changed the 
procedure. So they went to very sophisticated hardware, for 
the time, in '71, but the procedure was very labor intensive 
and not too sophisticated. Th t. is Ri'.-\Qf'E~i;.vn0~.s.s th t existed 

lJEW JEft'j{:)' S2!'}i.~0HRARY-
when I took over. ·--···-·1 
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The part you asked about, "Are we doing this 
in-house?"-- Many of the efficiencies that I have realized --
my staff and I over the last seven and a half years, were 
done in-house. What we contracted for now was a major redesign 
of those systems to give me greater efficiencies. But, we have 
taken that original system and, as I said, we combined the 
sales tax Motor Vehicle fees as an automated system. Sales tax 
was collected by Revenue; I collected the Motor Vehicle fees. 
We both handled the same piece of paper twice. So, I sold them 
on the idea of letting me do it, and I would do it cheaper for 
both of us. And we did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Jack, why don't you stay· with 
us? Your train isn't until what, 12:25? 

MR. ZOGBY: Yes, 12:25. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Okay. Why don't you stay with 
us. What I am going to do is, I am going to ask Frank 
Sencindiver to come up, too, and tell us about Virginia. Maybe 
both of you could -- like a quiz show, or a game show -- ~ield 
questions from everybody here on the Committee. 

I am now going to ask Frank Sencindiver, who is the 
Deputy Director of the Department of Motor Vehicles for the 
State of Virginia, to come on up. Frank, thank you for 
coming. We appreciate it very much. Why don't you begin your 
presentation? 
FRANK SEN CINDI VER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and 
members of the Cammi ttee, and good morning again. I have no 
written, prepared statement. I thought I would just speak 
extemporaneously and tell you a little about the Commonwealth 
of Virginia. It's odd that both Virginia and Pennsylvania are 
both Commonwealths and you've got both of us here this morning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That's right. You' re lovers, and 
they're friends. 

Virginia. 
you. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: I do bring you greetings from 
I appreciate being asked to come and speak before 
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I will soon wind up 39 years of employment with the 
Department of Motor Vehicles, and I have seen many changes over 
the years. When I first came with the Department of Motor 
Vehicles, we had 800, ooo vehicles registered in Virginia, and 
we had a manual system. We had an annual renewal system. 
Every March 15 to April 15 we had to renew all of these 
licenses manually, and consequently we had no meaningful 
records until about June or July when we got all this stuff 
filed manually. 

Jack was very 
Addressograph System, too. 

correct in saying we had the 
We had a renewal card that was in 

five sections. People would bring that in to us; we would 
stamp it with a date stamp and give them one section of it. 
The rest of it would go back to Richmond, where it would be 
filed, hopefully in the right order. So, we changed that. At 
that time, we only had 10 branch offices in the entire state. 
Now we have 65 branch offices, and we are beginning to give the 
people of Vtrginia, we feel, some service. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: How many drivers? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: We have about four and a half 

million drivers, and about four and a half million vehicles. 
That seems to run pretty much with al 1 states, I believe. We 
are a little bit smaller than Pennsylvania in number. Oh, that 
al 1 states did things exactly the same way, but they don't, 
and, of course, we all think we have the best system. But, I 
would like to tell you about ours this morning. 

In 1970, we had a new commissioner who came to 
Virginia, and he was able to get some money from the General 
Assembly in Virginia to build some branch offices and, indeed, 
we are still building some branch offices. We are on-line with 
our main computer in Richmond at all of our branch offices. We 
issue the drivers' licenses immediately over the counter. We 
issue the title immediately over the counter, those which do 
not have a lien on them. Of course, we send those directly to 
the lien holder. 
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Our drivers' licenses are photo licenses. We started 
that in 1969. Prior to 1932, there were no drivers' licenses 

in Virginia. In 1932, you could get a driver's license that 

first time if you could sign a statement that you had driven 

500 miles without an accident. I'm sure there were plenty of 

people who signed that statement who had never driven, 

probably, but they got a license. And, indeed, we never saw 

those people again until 1969, when we went to the photo 

license. Some of them, they allege, came in with seeing eye 

dogs and swore they never drove; only used it for 

identification. 

But, at any rate, we went from a three-year license, 

at that time, to a four-year license. What that did-- It 

really worked to our benefit; it gave us an off year every four 

years, and we were able to use that off year to train our 

license examiners a little bit better. 

January a year ago, we went to a five-year license, 

and our operator's license now costs $12 for five years. That 

means we will only have to see them once every five years, of 

course. 

What 

these people 

designed into 

we hope to do is, maybe by the time we get al 1 

in this five-year sequence-- What we have 

the system is that the license will expire when 
your birth date is divisible by five, so the license will 
expire when you are 25, 30, 35, 40. You will know when those 

dates roll around that you are going to have to renew your 

license. We hope we will have an even system where we can 

renew about a million drivers' licenses a year. 

Getting back to the license plates, we now have a 

staggered system, where we renew one-twelfth of all of our 

license plates every month. We renew about 400,000 every 

month. We have a little crunch at the end of every month in 

our branch offices because people like to wait until the last 

minute. I have tried -- through the news media and everything 
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else -- to get people to come in when we were not so busy 
during the middle of the month, but I think they just like to 
hold onto their money as long as they can. I think there is a 
certain amount of camaraderie that they have standing in line. 
They say, "Wel 1, here we are again at the end of the month." 
There are people like that, so I'm told. 

We really feel that we are offering our citizens some 
service now. We went to computers in 1963 for drivers' 
licenses, and in 1965 for our vehicles. We handle both the 
operator's license -- the entire part of it -- and the vehicle 
side of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Have you updated ,your computer 
system at all? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: We are in the process of doing that 
right now. We are still with the same programs we had back in 
1963 and '65, and they have been passed and added to. we are 
getting ready a request for a proposal to redesign our system. 
Right now, we have two different systems. We have a vehicle 
system and a driver system. If I have a driver's license and I 
own a couple of cars, I am listed in the computer three 
different times -- once for my driver's license, and once for 
each one of those cars. What we want to do is to only have me 
1 i sted in the computer once, and have it show my driver ' s 
license and all the vehicles I own. 

There were many things I thought of while Jack was 
talking that I could tell you about. We collect about $775 
million a year, because we also collect the gasoline tax in 
Virginia. We have a sales and use tax on the purchase of a car 
-- 2% of the purchase price of the car. There is no allowance 
made for a trade-in, so it is 2% of the purchase price of the 
car. Our general sales tax in Virginia is 4%, and it was felt, 
when the sales tax was first put into effect in Virginia, that 
rather than charge 4% and allow for a trade-in, that we would 
just say 2% on the sales and use tax on automobiles, and not 
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have to worry about computing the trade-in allowance. That has 
worked out very well. 

Our budget is about $75 million. We try to operate at 
10% of what we take in, and all of our funds go to the Highway 
Construction and Maintenance Fund in Virginia for building and 
maintaining the roads in Virginia. One dollar and 33 cents of 
every driver's license fee, and $3 for our learner's permit fee 
do go to the Department of Education. They use that for driver 
education in the high schools, and we think that is certainly 
Motor Vehicle related. We hate to see that money go, but it is 
going for a worthwhile purpose, we believe. 

We have 1803 employees. I don't want- to mislead you 
by saying we don't have any contractual license agents. We 
do. We have about 50 or 55 left. But, most of our business 
comes in from our branch offices scattered throughout the state. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Would it be fair to say then, 
Frank, that you are going to a state-run system? Is that what 
vou are gradually evolving to? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No, I don't think we will ever get 
there. I think there will always be a need for the license 
a~ent -- contractual license agent -- out in the rural areas, 
where there is not enough population to support a full-service 
branch office. Our furthermost branch office away is in 
Jonesville, Virginia -- which means nothing to you all, I'm 
sure -- which is further west than Detroit, Michigan. 
closer to--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: The Tennessee border? 

It is 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Oh, yes, 56 miles from Knoxville. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yeah. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: So, it's way out there. They can do 

anything at that branch off ice that we can do in Richmond 
deliver a title, get a driver's record up for insurance 
purposes, or whatever. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Are they hooked into a computer? 
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MR. SENCINDIVER: They are hooked into our computer in 
Richmond, yeah, on-line. When someone comes to a branch office 
in our Department to get a license plate and a title, the 
information is keypunched, and it goes to Richmond. The 
computer then, in Richmond, prints out the registration and 
title. So, it is already updated. When he leaves that office, 
if he is involved in a bank robbery or something and a police 
officer says, "I got a license number here, and I want to find 
out what it is," it is already in the computer, before he ever 
leaves that office. 

So, naturally, we think we have a good system. It 
wasn't always like this. We have come a lo~g way, I believe, 
in trying to give some service to the public. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Frank, what is the average 
waiting time in an agent's office for the processing of a 
person's documentation, say, on a registration or a license, 
absent the month-end crunch? 

MP SENCINDIVER: We have done some figures on that. 
For the driver's license, it is about 12 minutes, because we 
use the Polaroid system, and that takes a 60-second wait for 
the picture to develop. Again, we are on-line there. The 
computer prints out the printed part of the license, and that 
is about 12 minutes. I would say anywhere from 15 to 20 
minutes for the title and license plates. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Your photography is done in the 
agent's office? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Whether it be private or public? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: No. The contractual license agents 

only handle license plates. All of our drivers' licenses are 
handled by us. We have some traveling examining stations that 
go around to the smaller localities. They may be there once a 
week, or once a month in some of the localities, but they are 
our employees, and they set up there and work for us. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: 
system, a mobile unit? 

Kind of like a library loan 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Yes, sort of like a mobile unit, 
yeah, a traveling system. We only have about 12 of those left 
in the state because we have gradually blanketed the state so 
that nobody has to drive more than 25 or 30 miles to get to one 
of our offices. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do any of your legislators get 
involved in issuing any of these? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No, they don't. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: How about the municipalities and 

the counties? Do they play any part in the process? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: We have a few commissioners of 

revenue, or a treasurer's office, in a locality that will be 
our contractual licence agent, but many of them are grocery 
stores or hardware stores. It is something that supplements 
their income. We pay them -- I was telling Mr. Miller this 
morning -- on a percent;\.ge basis. It is a graduated fee. We 
pay them 3-1/2% on the first $250,000 of gross revenue that 
they collect; 3% on the next $250,000; 2% above a half a 
million; and, 1% above one million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You have a dedicated revenue going 
into the system. It is not a 6% tax on the automobile? The 
regular sales tax does not apply to automobiles? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No, no. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: A 2% tax on a $20,000 car would be a 

$400 sales tax that would be dedicated to your Department. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You then dedicate that out when you 

have a surplus. Is that correct? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: No, no. All of this money goes into 

the Highway Construction and Maintenance Fund, and the Highway 

Department--
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. It doesn't go into the 

General Fund operating the State of Virginia? 
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MR. SENCINDIVER: Oh, no. No, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: It is dedicated to that highway fund. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: A special fund, right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Very interesting. A dedicated 

source of revenue from the public to you--
MR. SENCINDIVER: Yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: --then a dedicated use of those 

funds. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: But that is really just the surplus 

after the deduction for your operational expenses. Is that 
correct? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: We operate on a budget like every 
other department in the state, but we do come from the special 
highway fund. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: The Highway Department is the one 

that builds and maintains the roads- They operate out of that, 
and we operate out of that. Those are the only two agencies 
that operate out of that special fund. Everybody else operates 
out of the General Fund. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: How is the fund? Is it pretty 
solvent? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Oh, sure, yeah, $775 million, and we 
predict that by the 1990s--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You are giving us some ideas, you 
know. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: --we will probably have $800 
million, or $850 million in this fund. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That's terrific. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: How about auto inspections? Do 

you do auto inspections? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Auto inspections are handled by the 

Department of State Police, which is a separate agency from the 
Department of Motor Vehicles. They are contractual garages. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Oh, they contract that service 

out to private garages? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Yes, they do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You don't run a state facility 

that does automobile inspections? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No. Our state is just so wide 
across the bottom-- It would cost a lot of money; we could do 

it, but we just figure we don't have the money to do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: Are they done annually your 

inspections? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: It is done annually now. It was 

semiannually for years and years, but-now it is done annually. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Let me ask you, Jack-- I want 

to ask you the same question I just asked Frank. Do the 

municipalities or the counties play any part in your system? 

MR. ZOGBY: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: None at all? 

MR. ZOGBY: None at all. One of the oroposals of that 

decentralized service contract-- By the way, I will send that 

to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yes, I would appreciate that. 

MR. ZOGBY: One of the alternatives was to have county 

offices. That continually came up in the General Assembly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: We have that now; we have an 

experimental station in Atlantic County, which we have taken 

testimony on here. The question before us is whether that can 

be made applicable -- Atlantic County tending to be more rural 

-- in a more urban county. I don't know. That is something we 

are looking at at the present time. 

But, the Atlantic County experiment, from the 

testimony we have taken anyway, appears to have been 

successful. You know, that is something under an ongoing 

review at the present time. 

MR. ZOGBY: May I just add something? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Sure; certainly. 

MR. ZOGBY: Is it all right with you, Frank? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: I have some other things 

say, but you go right ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: We'll get you both 

ahead, Jack. 

I want to 

in. Go 

MR. ZOGBY: One of the things that came to my mind 

when we were discussing this -- and I may have misled you on a 

couple of things-- First of all, while I was touting the 

centralized system--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yes? 

MR. ZOGBY: --it is something we grew up with in 

Pennsylvania, and I think you have to remember that. What we 

are about now, today, is really controlling our costs. I can't 

deny the service that branch off ices provide. I have seen 

Virginia's facilities, and they do provide a service. 

Another state that I know of which you may be 

jnterested in, is Wisconsin. Wisconsin has really-- You know, 

when you talk about some things that are state of the art, 

Wisconsin is really there. Most of the things we do are by 

necessity. I think you are in that point now, where certain 

things can happen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 

MR. ZOGBY: The other thing I may have misled you on 

is this idea of people going to our General Assembly members, 

and I think you under stand this in every agency. We commit a 

lot of transactions in processing something as simple as a 

driver's license, or a vehicle registration. In Pennsylvania, 

that translates into something like 26 million transactions a 

year, not unlike New Jersey, because you are close to our level 

of drivers and vehicles. If we have a 1% error rate -- we do 

-- we are talking about 250,000 errors. Those errors are 

happening to individuals; they are happening to motorists. 

Those are the people who go to the General Assembly. They 

usually go to the General Assembly to intercede for them. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I see. Then I am way ahead of the 
game. My biggest volume of mail is about our Division of Motor 
Vehicles -- more than anything else. 

MR. ZOGBY: There are some General Assembly members 
who actually solicit this type of work, but they are few and 
far between. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: We are going to take some field 
trips. Do you know much about Hawaii's Motor Vehicles? 
(laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Let me ask you, gentlemen -­
both of you -- other than your own states, if you were to point 
to another state that you thought, in the field of Motor 
Vehicles, had a reputation for having a state-of-the-art 
system, so to speak, or a good system that works both from the 
point of view of efficiency and service to the public, what 
would you tell us? Now, you just said "Wisconsin." Would that 
still be true, Jack? 

MR. ZOGBY: 
point of view. 

Yeah, Wisconsin and Virginia, from my 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Okay. Frank? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Well, of course, we like Virginia's 

system. We designed it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. But, no, your own state 

excluded. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: I'm not familiar with Wisconsin. I 

can go to North Carolina. Of course, we are in a different 
region--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yeah, a different region. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: --than Jack is. I think, as far as 

Virginia is concerned, if we felt we could do it better, we 
would change. To hear this gentleman say that all of his mail 
concerns DMV complaints-- That was true in Virginia, too, and 
that is the reason the Governor brought in a new Motor Vehicle 
Commissioner and charged him with giving some service and, 
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indeed, we are giving some service, but it does cost money. 
Our budget is $75 million, where we have 1800 employees, and I 
heard Jack say that his budget was $45 million, and how many 
employees do you have, Jack? 

MR. ZOGBY: Right now, it is 1100, and going down. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I think ours was up to-­
MR. ZOGBY: About $80 million? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: No, I'm talking about employees. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That could be employees, too, 

right? (laughter) 
ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: About 1900, I thought. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER:, I thought we were over 2000. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: We're like 2600, I think. (A 

discussion among Committee members at this point.) 
MR. ZOGBY: We had, at one time-- Originally, all of 

this activity was labor intensive, quite frankly, for a 
reason. We had, just in the Bureau of Motor Vehicles -- that 
is one of my three bureaus -- we had 2200 people. Today, I 
have less than 800. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That was back when you were doing 
manual processing? 

MR. ZOGBY: It was in the Addressograph days, but even 
when they automated, they were still retained. It took some 
time before, you know, they started saying, "We don't need this 
many." 

MR. SENCINDIVER: We had a little bit of that, too. 
We had what was known in our off ice as "Queen's Row." They had 
these ladies who sat there, and all they did was take a piece 
of paper and stamp it and pass it over. 

MR. ZOGBY: Queen's Row, huh? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: And that was it. They finally 

retired, and we were able to--
MR. ZOGBY: To sort of take it off the track of which 

system is better, perhaps, and maybe think of Motor Vehicle 
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administration as an industry -- because every one of the 

jurisdictions have one; not only the states, but Canada-- I 

think you have to take a long-term view of it, too. What I see 

happening in Pennsylvania-- I talked about decentralized 

services because I have to acknowledge that Pennsylvania 

motorists are not at least given the quality of service that 

you might have with branch offices. That is why I talked about 

this decentralized approach. 

What I think could happen in the future is that 

eventually, a lot of processing can be done without a personal 

interface, similar to the money access machines. Eventually, 

you are going to see registrations and drivers' licenses that 

have all of the information about us on a microchip. That 

microchip can be inserted into a machine, and the transaction 

can take place there for upgrading and updating. That is what 

I see for the long-term. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You think that Wisconsin has a 

decent system. 

MR. ZOGBY: They are continually upgrading and 

updating the electronic transfer of information. They will 

have -- probably by the end of this year -- no title. It will 

be a paperless title system. All the information will be 

electronic. Whether a bank wants to verify it, or the owner, 

it will be on an electronic record. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: And, Frank, you think North 

Carolina has a good system, opposite your own. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Well, yeah, we think North Carolina 

is good. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY : I used to live there. They have an 

excellent system. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: North Carolina, this time of 

year, is pretty good, I think, isn't it, Frank? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Wel 1, I certainly invite you, and 

anyone else you want, to come to Virginia. We would certainly 
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be happy to show you 
impressive. Our branch 

our process down there. 
offices-- We own some 

It 
of 

is 

the 
buildings; we lease some of the buildings. I failed to mention 
one thing. In northern Virginia, which is just booming-­
About 25% to 30% of the whole population of the state is in 
northern Virginia. We would not have been able to have 
survived there at the end of the month had we not gone to what 
we call "Express Offices." What they are-- There are two huge 
shopping malls there, and we opened up an Express Office in 
each one of those malls. They have the same hours as the 
malls. They are open from 10 o'clock in the morning until 9:30 
at night, Monday through Saturday. They are for renewals only, 
of either license plates or drivers' licenses. If you want to 
get a newly registered vehicle, you have to go to one of our 
branch offices. But, that really has helped. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Those ones in the malls -- are 
they operated privately or publicly? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: They are operated by DMV. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: By the DMV? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You don't have any stat ions in 

Virginia Beach, do you? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: We have a mall in Virginia Beach 

an office there -- and we have one office in Virginia Beach and 
another office we are getting ready to build there. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: How about Hershey Park? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Our Governor and the General 

Assembly realized that, for the most part, new residents to the 
state-- The first contact they have with state government is 
with the Department of Motor Vehicles. We had a reputation at 
one time of: "Wouldn't give you the time of day if they had a 
watch on both arms." We have changed that around a little 
bit. The people now, and the press, and everybody say that you 
do get good service from DMV. We try to impress upon our 
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employees that, if it ever gets turned around and headed that 

wrong way again, we are never going to change it. So, we get 

letters of commendation for our people where they have gone out 

of their way to help somebody. We share those with the 

employees, and that just seems to spur them on to doing 

something better the next time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Well, that is our concern here, 

obviously. In a corridor State like New Jersey, with as many 

vehicles as we have, we are kind of in-between both of you, 

both geographically and in the number of vehicles we have. I 

guess ours are around six million. The Division of Motor 

Vehicles is the first contact that many people have with our 

State, and we have a genuine concern about really bringing our 

system up into the twentieth century, and the twenty-first 

century, I suppose. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: It will be here soon, yeah. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yeah. Bob, I know you had some 

questions. ~r Martin. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: In two areas. First, you both 

touched upon personnel. Mr. Zogby, you said that in 

Pennsylvania you have some part-time employees. With your 

service in Virginia, Mr. Sencindiver, do you employ both 

full-time and part-time people? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Our 1803 are full-time positions. 

We do employ some part-time positions in the northern Virginia 

and Tidewater area offices because of the heavy volumes there. 

A lot of them are housewives who like to work between ten and 

three and be home when the kids come home from school. So, we 

have about 100 part-time employees statewide. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Are they Civil Service positions? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No, they are just paid a wage. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: How does one acquire such a job? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Make an application. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: To the branch office, and then 

the manager makes a selection? 
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MR. SENCINDIVER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: I think I may have misled you. The 

part-time positions I was speaking of are contracted. I have 
very few part-time positions. I have summer help. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Whatever you do is contracted? 
MR. ZOGBY: The photo-license offices -- as I told you 

are handled by the State Industries for the Blind and 
Handicapped. They are part-time positions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Right. 
MR. ZOGBY: I don't have part-time positions other 

than that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Those you have who are full-time 

working for the Commonwealth -- are they under Civil Service? 
MR. ZOGBY: Some are. The majority of them are 

covered by union -- the AFSCME Union, the American Federation-­
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Okay. If one were to seek a 

position in one of the off ices, is that-- Who handles the 
selection process? 

MR. ZOGBY: The selection process goes a couple of 
ways. First of all, non-Civil Service applicants are sent to a 
Central Division of State Employment. When I have a need-­
For instance, say I want an entry level clerical position, they 
will send me over, perhaps, a dozen applications, and then we 
select from those dozen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: So, you will select for positions 
out in Wilkes-Barre or someplace? 

MR. ZOGBY: I don't have positions in Wilkes-Barre. 
Remember, I'm centralized. Every one of my employees are in 
Harrisburg. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: What are you going to do when you 
decentralize? 

MR. ZOGBY: That will be private. I won't have 
employees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: What will AFSCME say about that? 
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MR. ZOGBY: A lot. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 

unionized down there? 

How about Virginia, are you 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: 

the middle of your comments. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: 

thing? 

Frank, I think we cut you off in 

Please continue. 

May I just follow up on one other 

MR. SENCINDIVER: I appreciate the questions, because 

if I haven't covered something that you have a burning question 

on, go right ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I am concerned about problem 

areas and troubleshooting. There are cases in New Jersey which 

seem intractable. The only thing we can recommend is for 

people to go to Trenton, which isn't too bad because of the 

smallness of the State. Do you run into that, especially with 

your centralized headquarters in Harrisburg, which is a haul 

for 90% of the people in Pennsylvapi~? Do you run into that, 

where people literally have to go to Harrisburg to cure a 

problem? 

MR. ZOGBY: Sometimes. Again, putting it in 

perspective, the Motor Vehicle man right around the corner from 

you provides service. You know, that is almost unparalleled. 

You can walk in there and do everything. However, there is a 

cost to that. So, we decided, early on, that we couldn't 

afford that cost. As an example, we had two branch off ices, 

one in Pittsburgh and one in Philadelphia. We had branch 

offices in no other community in the state. You know, being 

neighbors, you are aware of the various urban population 

centers we have. So, the persons in Erie could not get that 

same kind of service. 

Our branch off ices were not working well. It was a 

mirror of what we do in Harrisburg, and it was a mess. Quite 

frankly, everything was wrong. What we chose to do was close 
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them. Then what we did was, we beefed up several of our 
communication devices, like, we have a SO-person manned 
telephone center. The telephone center employs 800 lines. We 
do satisfy a lot of customers' complaints over the phone. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, let me ask you this: 
Suppose somebody has a problem with his license. For some 
reason, maybe it has a wrong name, or he has been notified that 
his license has been suspended and he doesn't believe it is. 
In Virginia, people can go to that branch office in Jonesville 
where they will be able to speak with a certainty which will 
resolve their problem, via the courts, the police, insurance 
companies, and so forth. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Sure; right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: In Pennsylvania, what do you do 

if you have that kind of a problem? 
MR. ZOGBY: Let me elaborate on that because, you 

know, we can sit here and talk about it almost in abstract, and 
that is not what happens. Those offices I am t~ 1 king about in 
Philadelphia and Pittsburgh-- That is how they started. They 
started because they thought it would be a good service to have 
a person there who could hear driver complaints. 
of the activity. It is not the registrations. 

That is most 
Those off ices 

started with one man in 1970, and when I took over there were 
33 persons in Pittsburgh and there were 55 in Philadelphia. 

A person would walk in, he would sit down, and it was 
really a social interaction. We are not a social worker 
agency. They would sit down and hold hands with these people. 
They couldn't do anything about it because, for the most part, 
the activity was embodied in a law and there was no discretion 
on the part of the department. However, they would spend a 
half a day commiserating with a person about losing his 
driver's license. In fact, it would cause some complications, 
because perhaps the heat of the interaction would suggest, 
"Well, maybe I can do something for you," and they couldn't. 
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When we stopped it, that activity, in fact, became 
better. Now, notwithstanding the fact, we do suspend 500,000 
people a year. Those persons who are suspended who really have 
a problem -- either with insurance or something like that -­
believe me, I hear about it, usually again through the General 
Assembly. I hear about it through the mail; I hear about it, 
perhaps, sometimes from a visit to my office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You have a toll-free complaint line? 
MR. ZOGBY: I have toll-free numbers throughout the 

state. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: So, if I, as a motorist, had a 

question or a complaint about, you know, an incorrect renewal, 
or something like that, or something improperly handled, I 
could call that toll-free number and a complaint taker would 
come on the phone and talk to me about it. 

MR. ZOGBY: Well, even more than that. The people who 
man our phone centers also have a terminal right there. We can 
do certain transactions right over the phone. For instance, ·-,e 
can change a person's name or address, if that is his or her 
complaint. If a person comes and says, "Hey, you spelled my 
name wrong," they can go right into the terminal there, 
generate the change, and that will be mailed out. 

Now, they also call this person-­
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: How do you verify that? 
MR. ZOGBY: Pardon me? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: 

that that is correct? 
Is there some way of verifying 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. Perhaps a person on the phone would 
call in and say, "My name is Robert Mart in, " and it wasn't. 
Right? And, playing a joke on you, he wou!d say, "My address 
is," and change it over the phone. Well, that information will 
be sent-- A couple of things wi 11 happen. We wi 11 ask, "Why 
is it changed? Have you moved?" and things like that. But, it 
will be sent to the new address. Yeah, that could be a problem. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Frank, do you have a complaint 
line? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No. Wel 1, in the area of 
complaints, if they have any, they just take them right to the 
branch offices. We get letters of complaint, but I want to 
reiterate that, as you know, people are more prone to write a 
letter of complaint than they are a letter of commendation. 
Our commendation letters run 10 to 1 to complaints. It's 
because we are giving the public some service. We have gotten 
letters from military people, as an example, who have said they 
registered vehicles all over the country and they expected to 
spend fully a half a day or something. . They said they were 

amazed to be out in 20 minutes and have everything. Our 
General Assembly will tell you that they rarely get a letter of 
complaint. And, usually what they get now, is a statutory 
complaint, where we are required by law to revoke the license, 
and they want to do something about it. Of course, if it is by 
statute, therP is nothing we can do about it. 

MR. ZOGBY: That is the majority of our complaints, 
too -- driver license actions, not the Motor Vehicle process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I am going to give you an example. 
This is a novel situation which exists in my county, which is 
the next county south of here -- 15 miles away. There is a 
local Motor Vehicle agency in Burlington. Burlington's 
telephone prefix is 386. So, anyone from Delran north -- which 
is half of the district~- can call 386 toll free, except when 
you dial the Burlington office, it is a 292 number -- which is 
a Trenton, State number -- and for everybody in my district to 
call their own local Motor Vehicle agency is a toll call. I 
get complaints about that constantly. 

Now, I have advised the Director, and he is speaking 
to the agent to try to change that. But, they don't actually 
talk to people in the offices. They talk to people up here who 
take the information. Whereas if they are going to be talking 
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to people up here anyway-- I made a recommendation a while 
back that we should have a toll-free number, and we should have 
a staff of people to ease the burden off the local offices 
regarding these complaints, because there is a tremendous 
amount of frustration that has built up as a result of a system 
that has not functioned and delivered the services that it is 
supposed to deliver in an efficient manner. 

That is why we are glad you're here. We have learned 
a great deal from you both today, I have to tell you that. 

MR. ZOGBY: One of the things I found over the last 
seven and a half years -- whether you have a service like 
Virginia, which is an excellent branch- office perspective, or 
whether you have a centralized service -- is, it all relates to 
the processing time. I can almost tell you when my phones are 
going to ring off the hook, or whether I am going to be before 
a committee in the General Assembly. I watch those turnaround 
times. 

When those turnaround times approach, somewhere in 
Pennsylvania, within a period of 15 days I am starting to get 
into trouble. To me, again, the secret -- it's not a secret; 
it's just pure, simple, hard work is in management and 
management controls. If you have a system, no matter what it 
is, and you have the proper management tools to monitor that 
system to see where the critical areas are so you can react to 
them before they become a problem, you are usually successful, 
whether you have a centralized system, or a service-oriented 
branch office system. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: I might say one other thing. You 
can't just keep on building buildings and building buildings to 
take care of the new business and new population. In our 
business in Virginia-- The car business is booming. In the 
month of April, we registered 180,000 new vehicles. It was up 
something like 20% over April a year ago. 
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What we are doing in our new off ices is-- We are 
having them establish office hours from Tuesday through 
Saturday, and staying closed on Sunday and Monday. All of our 
offices statewide are open from 8:30 to 4:30, with the 
exception of Thursday, when they are open from ten until six. 
That is beginning to give the public the kind of service they 
need. Our General Assembly, I'm sure, rather than give us more 
employees and more buildings, is going to say, "You are going 
to be open more hours." That may necessitate more employees, 
but certainly not new buildings, which is rather expensive. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Assemblyman Miller? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: In keeping with Assemblyman Foy's 

comments about the toll lines, Mr. Chairman, I would like to 
put on the record an incident that happened, toll line-wise, in 
this State, which I think is pretty important to the overall 
hearing. But, I will not do it right at this moment. 

Another question: Social Security numbers-- Do you 
use them at all on your drivers' licenEes? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: We do, yes. In Virginia, we use the 
Social Security number as the license number. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: As the license number? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Yes, we do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: There is a bill in to eliminate that 

here. 
MR. ZOGBY: To eliminate it? We do not use the Social 

Security number. We have a unique operator identifying 
number. However, three years ago, a state Senator who is no 
longer in the Senate, sponsored a bill that passed, that 
requires us to capture the Social Security number. He did not 
provide that it should be an identifier. We have not as yet 
used it as the identifier. It is a very difficult thing. We 
had not chosen it because we had a number already in place that 
served us well. The advantage of the Social Security number 
would be for national processing purposes -- tracking people 
nationally. 
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There are problems in the Social Security number, 

although the problems are within a minute population of them. 

There are duplicates; not only duplicates-- They were some 

duplicates that were issued intentionally. Some duplicates 

were issued in the '30s and '40s from the East Coast to the 

West Coast, you know, in a much simpler time. There were also 

duplicates issued with dependents. A - person's wife and 

children were issued the same number, especially if the person 

was deceased at the time. This was in the '40s. So, there are 

problems with the Social Security number. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Jack is correct. We do have a few 

problems, but they are so minuscule over the whole picture. We 

have a good working relationship with the Social Security 

Administration, and any time we find two that are the same we 

get those resolved. The people, generally, are appreciative of 

it, because they may have been paying into a wrong Social 

Security account for a number of years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILL!:R: Have you run into any trouble 

with the civil liberties groups? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Yeah. They took us to court a 

couple -- I say a couple, but it was probably 15 years ago 

and the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals 

Court of Appeals upheld our right to 

required the Social Security number 

-- the Federal Circuit 

have that. We have 

on both titles and 

operators' licenses for a number of years. 

law one time that you could only use that 

number, unless the states were already 

grandfathered in. 

There was a Federal 

for a Social Security 

using it. We were 

MR. ZOGBY: But, it is all right today. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: I think it is all right today. 

MR. ZOGBY: We can use it. We are in the process of 

collecting them. Once we get secure enough that every driver 

has it on the system, we may choose to go to that as the 

identifying number. 
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MR. SENCINDIVER: We had a computer-generated number 

on a similar system to what New York has. It was a 17-digi t 

nwnber. People used to come to Virginia from New York, and 

they would say, "This is most amazing. You gave me the same 

nwnber on my driver's license in Virginia that I had in New 

York." Naturally so, it was the same system. But, that was a 

17-digi t nwnber, and it just got to be too much. There were 

some duplicates in that, too. It worked on your last name and 

your date of birth and your sex, and every once in a while you 

could come up with the same nwnber. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Mr. Martin? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: The computer you use in Virginia 

which services all these branches-- Could you just talk to us 

a 1 i tt le bit about how that has been updated, or how that has 

kept pace with--

MR. SENCINDIVER: In 1963 and 1965, the Department of 

Motor Vehicles had its own computer. It was housed in our 

building in Rirhmond, and we were the sole user of that. At 

some point -- I expect it was about 1975 -- they appointed -­

they didn't appoint, they established a data processing agency, 

arid all data processing goes through this agency now. So, we 

are just a user of a particular computer like anybody else. We 

are the prime user of that because we are on-line. There are 

something like 30 other agencies that are on that same 

computer, but most of their work is batch work at night. We 

are the prime user of that. 
To give you an example of how our computer works, I 

mentioned earlier that sometimes we didn't have any meaningful 
records until June or July, when all of this stuff would be 
filed manually. If a police officer in Arlington County, 

Virginia, wanted to find out who owned a license plate, they 

would have to teletype to Richmond, and our operator there 

would have to leave his post, go look it up, and go back to the 

teletype. 
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We now have a Virginia Criminal Information Network 
that each law enforcement agency is party to. They have a 
computer terminal. They come into our computer, retrieve what 
information they need, and get it back immediately. We never 
even know they have gone in to get it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Is there a consultant who is 
utilized with this, or is this an in-house department now which 
runs from the Commonwealth? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: It is a separate agency. It is the 
Department of Information Technology. They have three 
computers. They are tremendous computers. I am not a data 
processing person, but .I know they have an IBM, a Honeywell, 
and one other, which I can't remember. We are on the IBM 
system. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: And there are terminals in every 
one of these branches? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Oh, sure; yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN· Have you had any problem with the 

processing time, or downtime? 
MR. SENCINDIVER: Once in a while, like any computer 

of course, it does go down. It seems 1 ike it goes down every 
Friday afternoon at four o'clock when you have a lobby full of 
people, particularly at the end of the month. But, for the 
most part, they are doing a good job of keeping the computer up. 

We had a series of meetings around the state where we 
asked our employees what they thought we could do better to be 
more efficient -- to serve the public better. One of the 
things that some of them said was that they thought that 
everybody who was a data processing person should be made to 
work in an off ice and in the field one day a year when the 
computer was down, to see those people, you know, when you tell 
them, "The computer is down and I can't do anything for you." 

In the system redesign that we are working on right 
now, we want to have it so that the local off ices wi 11 be 
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independent, so that when the main computer goes down, we can 
still process some data. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: It's an interesting penalty you 
mentioned. I am going to keep that in mind. 

MR. ZOGBY: One of the things we have discovered in 
Pennsylvania, and I think probably you have discovered it here, 
is-- One of the reasons why I feel, perhaps, some comfort in 
the way we are proceeding with Arthur Andersen -- although you 
also have to manage that very well -- is, you should never go 
into a major redesign without your own people -- whether they 
are systems people or whether they are program people 
understanding what you are getting into. In both our cases, we 
had our own staff write the requirements report. When we 
invited, by bid, the consultant to come in, we gave them the 
clear direction on how we wanted to go. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Very true. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I think that is part of the 

problem we have here, because I don't ~hink that was done here 
at the time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: We hired Price Waterhouse to write 
their own specifications. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: 
give clear directions. 

That's very true. You've got to 

MR. ZOGBY: You know, there is an ownership-­
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Excuse me. I ran into Matt 

Boylan in the hallway coming over here. He suggested to me 
that he would contact you to invite us down there to see how 
fine the computer is working out. I said, "Pat will be 
delighted to go and visit." 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Through you, Mr. Chairman--
Jack, you are decentralizing or you are going to a 
decentralizing system; you are working--

MR. ZOGBY: We had hoped to, but it will be after the 
new systems are up. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Okay. Under the decentralizing 

system-- Will it be a full service system? 

MR. ZOGBY: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That is to say, they will be able 

to--

MR. ZOGBY: That is one of the criteria. Anyone who 

wants to come into the process, the decentralized service, must 

offer full service. They can't just select out the ones that 

sound like they will be the profit makers. They have to offer 

us full service. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: So then, you are taking a page 

out of New Jersey's book. You are going to decentralize, 

except it is going to be on a competitive basis. It is not 

going to be on a selection basis; it is going to be strictly 

competitive. 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. I guess it goes back to that old 

saying -- I think it was Alexander Pope -- something analogous 

to this: "Whichever is best administered is best." 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Yeah. I was just wondering, 
al though there is a difference between what you are doing and 

what we have here right now. 

MR. ZOGBY: Yeah. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: The feeling in the State seems to 

be that we should be State-controlled in all of the agencies 

around. I am not quite sold on that myself, at this particular 

point. It is interesting to see that you are going out 

decentralizing, although yours is -- as I say -- not on a 

politically selected type of situation. Yours is on the basis 

of if you qualify, you're in. 

MR. ZOGBY: On the marketplace, yeah, and with strict 

controls. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Yeah. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Are there any other questions? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: I just have one. In Virginia, 
do the agents do everything other than inspections -- issue 
licenses, issue titles? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No. The agents 
license agents and, again, there are only 

state. All they do is issue license plates. 

are contractual 

50 left in the 

They have to send 

their title work in to a branch office, where it is put into 

the computer, and then the title is mailed from there. They 

are not computerized. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHUSTED: But, the titles can be given at 

the state--

MR. SENCINDIVER: At branch offices 

state-controlled branch offices, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do you maintain at least one branch 

office in every county? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: No, no. Oh, no, we have 96 counties 

in Virginia. 

exL.,nple, I 

What we try to do, on a regional basis-­

think I mentioned earlier that when our 

As an 

formr-

Commissioner first came, we only had 10 branch offices in the 

entire state. We now have 10 branch offices in northern 

Virginia alone. So, we look at the agents' -- the contractual 

license agents' work. When they get up to where they are doing 

$30,000 or $35,000 worth of business that is the 

compensation we pay them -- we have to look at the fact that 

maybe we need to put a branch office there, because there are 

enough transactions there to justify it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. These are people who are in 

some other business doing this as an additional source of 

revenue. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: What about-- Your inspection 

stations are all basically through gasoline stations, right, 

and repair stations? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Garages, yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Garages, okay. Do you have at least 

one in every county with respect to that? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Oh, yeah, more than that. Again, 

that is handled by the Department of State Police, which is a 

separate agency. For instance, in Richmond there are 

probably 100 in the City of Richmond. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I think you have a bill in, don't 

you, Bob, to require a minimum of one for every county. That 

is a State-run--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: A State-run system. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: That would be different. It would 

be very expensive for us to start anything like-that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yeah, with 96 counties, and some 

of them are quite rural, I would assume. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Oh, yeah, yeah. We have one county, 

Monterey, that only has 2500 people in the whole county, so, 

you know, they couldn't support a-- They would probably like 

one. It would give them-- (remainder of comment inaudible due 

to laughter) . 

MR. ZOGBY: We have 18,000 state inspection stations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You have 18,000? 

MR. ZOGBY: Eighteen thousand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do you have state stations at all in 

Pennsylvania? 

MR. ZOGBY: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: There are no state stations 

there. How many--

MR. SENCINDIVER: I don't have any idea, since that is 

a different agency that maintains those. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Oh, I'm sorry. Yeah, it is done 

by the State Police. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: But, I would venture to guess that 

there are probably at least 100 in Richmond alone -- in the 

City of Richmond. So, you know, it would not be far-fetched to 

say up in the thousands in Virginia. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Are there any other questions? 

(no response) Gentlemen, listen, I want to thank you very, 

very much on behalf of the Committee and the General Assembly 

for your coming, both from Harrisburg and Richmond, to be with 

us as this Committee proceeds on its journey to modernize the 

system of the State of New Jersey to bring it into modern 

business techniques. 

I think some of the things I have heard from you today 

the Attorney General and Mr. Paulsen, our new Director, who 

just came on board a couple of weeks ago, have espoused, and we 

would hope that they would carry on. I found this extremely 

enlightening today; I really did. I think you have given us 

some clues on some other folks we would like to talk to also, 

as we go along, because certainly no state has a monopoly on 

what a good system is. 

MR. ZOGBY: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: But, certainly we could, in this 

particular instance, afford to learn from some of our sisters 

and brothers around the country. Now, if you could only tell 

me -- as Assemblyman Foy said -- that Hawaii has a great 

system, I would be extremely pleased. 

MR. SENCINDlVER: As a matter of fact, both 

Pennsylvania and Virginia -- and, in fact, all states, as far 

as I know -- belong to the American Association of Motor 

Vehicle Administrators, and I am sure Mr. Paulsen-- Is that 

his name? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Glenn Paulsen, yes. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: I'm sure Mr. Paulsen is, too. I 

understand that Hawaii has recently dropped out, so we can't 

even go over there and have a meeting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Oh, maybe we should go out and 

find out why they did that. 

MR. ZOGBY: I would recommend one other stop for you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Yes? 
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MR. ZOGBY: That is Maryland. It is not as exotic as 
Hawaii, but--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: This time of year, believe me--
MR. ZOGBY: The reason I am saying that is because 

Maryland has a new director within the last year, and a new 
mandate, and they are redesigning their system with Price 
Waterhouse. A different approach; you might want to visit them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: On Wisconsin, on Wisconsin-- (sung) 
MR. SENCINDIVER: They are going to a staggered 

system, too, where they have had an annual system of renewals. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Oh, okay, yeah. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: So, they may be going through some 

of the growing pains that we went through some years ago. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I just hope it is not 

staggering, as opposed to staggered. 
MR. SENCINDIVER: We -- as I told you -- did that some 

years ago. But, many of our visitors come to Virginia, and 
then try to go back and put it into being overnight. It's hard 
to do, unless you have an unlimited amount of funds. We have 
had to work, work, work. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Gentlemen, thank you very, very 
much for being with us. Have a safe trip back. 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Please come to visit us. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I think some of us will try to 

as we go along on this. We appreciate it very much. Thanks 
very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Thanks, again. It has been nice to 
see you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Pat, if I might--
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I know Jack is going back by 

train. Frank, you have a plane at four, or something. Did you 
want to come down to the floor of the Assembly? 

MR. SENCINDIVER: Oh, yeah, I intend to. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Okay, because we would like to 
arrange a pass for you. If you want to stay around, we will 
take care of that for you here. Okay? Bob, do you want to-­
He will take care of it. 

Mr. Alexander, you represent the New Jersey Federation 
of Senior Citizens? 
NICK ALEX ANDER (speaking from audience): Yeah, I 
am the President of the New Jersey Federation of Senior 
Citizens. I have a brief presentation here on behalf of Rudy 
Jessup (phonetic spelling), who is unable to be here. I won't 
be too long. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Okay, because we would like to 
adjourn at 11:30, if we could, and it is about 11:20 now. Is 
that all right. 

MR. ALEXANDER: Yes . 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Why don't you come on up? 
MR. ALEXANDER: My name is Nick Alexander. I am the 

PreF.; ~ent of the New Jersey Federation of Senior r.i tizens. I 
am presenting a paper here on behalf of Rudy Jessup, President 
of the Lower Township Federation of Senior Citizens. He is an 
Executive Board Member of the New Jersey Federation of Senior 
Citizens, and he is also a Vice President of the Southern 
Region of the New Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens. 

I will read it, since it is a letter directed to this 
Committee: 

11 I am very sorry that I could not attend today's 
hearing due to a previous engagement. I am, therefore, 
submitting this statement. 

11 I wish to speak on behalf of the senior citizens and 
the disabled who do not live in the urban areas of the State 
where there is sufficient mass transportation. I would like to 
ask this question: What of us who live in the rural and 
semi-rural areas of the State of New Jersey, where there is 
very little or no mass transportation of any kind? We must 
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depend on our cars to get us to 
church, the stores or malls, 
friends. We must depend on our 

the doctor, the hospital, our 
and to visit relatives and 
cars to get us to the polling 

places to vote in the areas where we live. 
"We do not ask for fare-free transportation, but for a 

reduction in our car registration. On April 28, 1986, I wrote 
a letter to every member of this Committee, requesting that you 
back Assemblyman Karl Weidel's bill -- A-786 -- and to expedite 
its facets. I have written Governor Kean and Speaker Hardwick, 
and received favorable answers on the above; also, replies from 
some of you Assemblymen expressing favorable concern for our 
cause. 

"I know that we seniors in New Jersey have very good 
benefits, and we are grateful for them. However, this 
reduction in car registration fees is a benefit that many of us 
are sorely in need of. Senior citizens of Pennsylvania have 
had this benefit for many years. Why not the seniors and 
disabled in New Jersey? Again I say, this is much needed 
legislation for our seniors, and I hope you will act on it 
accordingly. 

"Thank you for your attention." It is signed Rudy 
Jessup. 

Now, the New Jersey Federation endorses this and is in 
support of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Sir, thank you. We appreciate 
it. I can just fill you in: My understanding is that that 
bill was directed to the Senior Citizens Committee, and has 
been released already by them to the Assembly floor. It has 
the support, I think, of most of the members here, if not all 
of the members. But, I understand that was released a week or 
so ago by the Senior Citizens Committee. 

FROM AUDIENCE: It's today. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Oh, is it today? 
FROM AUDIENCE: Yes, this morning. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Okay. It is supposed to be 
released today then. 

MR. ALEXANDER: Well, I'm sorry to have bored you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: No, that's okay. That's fine. 

We appreciate it because that is something that we would back 
anyway. But, my understanding is that that is before the 
Senior Citizens Committee today. I don't know if the Senior 
Citizens Committee is still meeting. You might want to go down. 

MR. ALEXANDER: Well, I am going down there now. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: You might want to take the 

letter down there and give that testimony to them. 
MR. ALEXANDER: Thank you very much. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Thank you, sir. At this point, 

I will--
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: May I put something on the record? 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Oh, yeah, go ahead. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: 

something to your attentin .... 
I would just like to bring 

There was a great deal of 
discussion, on the Administration side, about going government 
on the agencies. We all know that any adverse comments or 
publicity coming from our constituents seems to lean in that 
direction. 

Let me tel 1 you what happened. I had a phone cal 1 
from a gentleman this week. The caller said he tried to get 
the Motor Vehicle agency in Wayne, and it was constantly busy, 
busy, busy. So he called the operator. The operator said, 
"That line is always busy. They leave the phone off the hook 
over there." They overrode the busy, and found that no one was 
talking on the phone. Now the man calls me, and I said, "Well, 
let me check it." So I call the number, and it's busy. I call 
a few times. I call the operator; they check it; they override 
the busy, and no one is talking. 

So I say, "What is going on?" Now I have the number 
directly into the Motor Vehicle agency. I have their private 
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number. I called and I told them what was going on. I was 

told, "Just a minute, Mr. Miller. You have to recognize that 

that cal 1 doesn't come in here. That goes to Trenton." Okay, 
fine. 

So, I called -- it was Ms. Cox, at the time and 

they steered me down to a woman. I talked to her, told her 

what the problem was, and she said, "Fine, leave it with us." 

I said, "Wait a minute. I am going to leave it with you for 

one hour. I want an answer as to what is going on." So, she 

called the switchboard operator on this thing -- the chief 

operator -- and then she called me back. I said, "When are 

they going to fix this? What are they going to do about 

this?" She said, "Wel 1, I really don't know. " I said, "What 

is the operator's name?" Then I called the operator. The 

operator told me that they have had this problem now for, oh, 

three or four months, and they are working on it. 

"Well, what are we doing about it?" She said, "Well, 

it has been given to, " and she ment ioTted the name of the 

telephone man who is involved in this. Now, being in the phone 

business for 38 years, I sort of talk their language a little 

bit. So what happens here-- She tells me that they have idle 

positions, or idle operators at the switchboard with no calls 

coming in, but we are still getting overflows and busy-backs up 
in the northern part of the State. 

So, I talked to the telephone man. He told me that we 

have -- if you are familiar with trunking -- 11 trunks in this 
group, 11 in this group, 11 out of Pompton Lakes which Wayne 

feeds, and 11 out of New Brunswick coming from the northern 

part of the State. So, when that group is busy, they get the 

busy-back. In the meantime, there are operators sitting in 

Trenton with nothing to do. Right? 

Now, the solution, of course, is a larger group of 

trunks -- centralized trunks. Take the four groups of 11 and 

put 44 trunks together and get the usage out of it, and you 
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will get fewer overflows. The reason they haven't done this is 
because they don't want to put an 800 in front of the number, 
although it is like an 800 Watts line. The reason they don't 
want to do it is because people get on an 800 number and they 
will talk because it is a free phone call, whereas if it is 
the, I think it is the 831 number up there-- If they call 
that, it might be a toll call -- they think it may be a toll 
call to them, so they cut the conversation short. 

So anyhow, I talked to the telephone man. He has 
known about this for some time, and he has made two 
recommendations. One was, I think, a 936 or 976 group. You 
call the number, you get a message, "Ail lines are busy" -­
like the airlines -- and when someone answers, you get little 
messages: "If you are going for your driver's license, make 
sure you bring your birth certificate with you" -- this sort of 
stuff, to drop down the calls. That spills over then into the 
large group. This is the recommendation. 

They have 48 trunks right now, and they "!an go as 
high, I believe, as 59 trunks in this group. The 
recommendation had been made to the Attorney General's office 
at contact. So, I called the Attorney General's office to find 
out what was going on. He was glad to talk to someone who knew 
what the business was all about, and he was going to check into 
it. That was a week and a half ago. I haven't gotten back to 
him yet. 

But, what I am trying to point out to you is, there is 
a feeling that we should go State control of the Motor Vehicle 
agencies. I have the feeling that we aren't doing enough to 
help the individual agents to do the job they are supposed to 
be doing. That is one area, because the people get irate over 
the fact that they can't get this agent. This was a dealer, by 
the way, who was talking to me. He is disturbed that they are 
not doing their job. That is a black mark; it's negative 

against the local agents. Pf-10PERTY Of -1 
NEf JER,3EY STATE UB!lfRY 

, I . 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: They have no control over it? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: No control whatsoever over this 

thing. So, that is one thing I see happening. The other thing 
I see happening is, we talk-- You heard here today about the 
3-1/2%, a quarter of a million and 3% the next quarter, and so 
forth. I think -- and we have discussed this -- that has to be 
changed if we are going to keep them out there. You can't 
expect someone to work and give great service, knowing full 
well that by the time they get finished they are being 
penalized for this thing because their cost per unit is going 
down. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: The other thing -- you make a 
good point, and they brought it up today -- seems to be, there 
needs to almost be a division between handling telephone 
complaints and processing paper person to person. These places 
don't have someone who is available all day. Many things could 
be answered and problems cleared up if someone was there who is 
knowledgeable, who says, "This is what you are going to need to 
bring" -- as you pointed out -- "This is what you did wrong," 
"This is where I can steer you to help you out. " Just have 
someone to respond to them. 

But what happens-- Again, the agencies get busy, they 
take the phones off the hook--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: That's right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: --or something like this happens, 

where they have no control over it. They are so short-handed 
with their desk clerks trying to process, they don't have time 
to answer the phones. Then somebody cal 1 s up and says, "I 
wanted to get a simple answer over the phone, but I couldn't do 
it. I had to go there, and when I got there, there were only 
five clerks, and there were 200 people." 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: They are 
transaction, not by--

You know, it's just-­
also getting paid by 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That's right. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Newt, will you please keep us 
up-to-date as to what happens when the Attorney General gets 
back to you on that. Certainly, that was a disturbing 
incident. You described it to me on the phone before. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Well, my concern is, if it is 
happening in North Jersey, what is happening in other parts of 
the State? Do we have the same situation in other sections? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I'm sure we do; I would assume 

we do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You know, I don't understand why 

people in my county have to call Trenton. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I can understand that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: They have to pay a toll call. I 

mean, that's crazy. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That shouldn't be; you're right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: That's correct. I have had 

constituents send their phone bills to me -- people who made 
calls on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I haven't had that yet. They send 
their phone bills to·you? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: I just recently had a phone bill 
sent to me in the mail. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I think there are many things 
here that, you know, these hearings we are having--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: They are useful because we are 
fleshing out just about every aspect of the situation. Whether 
we will come up with any answers, I don't know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: We'll see what happens. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I think it is time to take the show 

on the road. I say get the camper, and let's head down to 
Virginia Beach. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Well, we found out there is an 
agency down there, so--
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: How about Alaska at this time of 
year, or maybe we should go international. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHUBER: Thank you, everybody. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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